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	SUBJECT:
	Amendment 2 to Request for Proposal 3250

	RFP TITLE:
	A Multistate Contract For Maintenance Repair and Operations (MRO), Industrial Supplies and Tools

	DATE OF AMENDMENT:
	[bookmark: _GoBack]July 20, 2016

	DATE OF RFP RELEASE:
	June 8, 2016

	OPENING DATE:
	August 3, 2016   August 16, 2016

	OPENING TIME:
	2:00 PM

	CONTACT:
	Gail Burchett, Procurement Staff Member




The following shall be a part of RFP 3250.  If a vendor has already returned a proposal and any of the information provided below changes that proposal, please submit the changes along with this amendment.  You need not re-submit an entire proposal prior to the opening date and time.


1. What is NASPO's definition of internet catalog?

	•	Does a plain PDF version of our print catalog suffice?

· 	A fully interactive version of our print catalog with clickable links to pages and sections 	available in a browser or some other device but does not have e-comm capabilities?

· 	Our full catalog list of products listed on a website with full e-commerce capabilities?
		Just clarifying if the e-com site and internet catalog is one in the same or not. 

Response: The internet catalog is as described in point 2, i.e. “a fully interactive version of our print catalog with clickable links to pages   and sections available in a browser or some other device but does not have e-comm capabilities”. E-Com site and internet catalog are not one in the same.  


2.	2. Section 5.5.5.7 "Personal Lists"

	Please define "Personal Lists".  E.g., Stored list of frequently ordered products? Also, want to 	verify that this is not a typo and it should be Personal lists of authorized buyers, each with their 	own profile and stored p-card info.  That could be what they were going after in this section. 

	Response: Stored list of frequently ordered product.


3.	Please clarify the requirement addressing web based product sourcing. (para.5.5.5.9	Technical data, illustrations, Material Safety Data Sheets, parts availability, and access to 	web-	based product sourcing is required).
Response: This means that your e-commerce and web catalog must be capable of displaying technical data, illustrations, and MSDS sheets. Listing parts availability and have a web- access based product that allows product sourcing.


4.	Section 1: Project Overview states that over 40 states have participated in the contract. 	Attachment J only lists 17 States. Which States make up the remaining 23?

		Alabama
		Arkansas
		California
		Colorado
		Delaware
		Georgia
		Hawaii
		Iowa
		Kansas
		Kentucky
		Maine
		Maryland
		Michigan
		Minnesota
		Mississippi
		Nebraska
		New Jersey
		New Mexico
		North Carolina
		Pennsylvania
		Rhode Island
		Texas
		Vermont
		West Virginia
		Wisconsin
		Wyoming


5.	On page 9 #4 Administrative and Technical Response requirements through 4.5.6 on page 13 	are a series of questions that need responses. There is no explanation of which tab in the 	Technical proposal these responses to go under. Should the responses for questions under 	section 4 be placed in the Part I A Technical Proposal under 1) Tab 3 Proposer Information 	Sheet or 2) under Tab 6 Scope of Work or 3) Tab 7 Company Background and References? It 	seems to fit better under Tab 3 (add Section 4 under Tab 3 Proposer Information Sheet on the 	checklist and on the table of contents).

Response:  The answers to this section should be in Part 1A Technical Proposal the placement of the responses should be determined by the proposer.


6.	It is not clear what is needed for the Part 3 Confidential Financial Information. Section 	11.5.2.2  Tab II refers to information required in section 6.1.11 which only lists the need for the 	Fed Tax Number and the Dun and Bradstreet number and Section 9.5 Part III - confidential 	financial information - but I am not seeing section 9.5. Do you need standard financial 	statements (income statement, balance sheets, etc.)?

Response: The reference to Section 9.5 is in error and should be a reference to Section 11.5. Your Federal Tax Number and Dun and Bradstreet number are all that is required for the Confidential Financial Information.


7.	On section 6.1.1, the last three responses concerning number of employees and locations. 	Should this be broken down by lead state Nevada and all other states that are being proposed to 	service?

	Response: This should be given for all States that are being proposed to service.


8.	Amendment #1 question 21 answer states "Currently this set of contracts for Facilities MRO is 	used by 41 states and represents at minimum 133 participating addendums (PA). This includes 	political subdivisions, schools and universities." Does this mean that political subdivisions, 	schools and universities can sign participating addendums and participate in this MRO contract 	or are PA's only at the state level?

Response: Yes, many political subdivisions, schools and universities sign their own participating addendums because they have unique terms and conditions.

9.	We respectfully request a 10 business day extension in order to thoroughly review the answers 	to the questions from round one and upcoming round two and how they could impact our 	proposal response.

Response: The opening date of the proposals has been changed to August 16, 2016 @ 2:00pm

10.	In section 5.2.5 Reasonableness of pricing of the RFP 3250 it states the following:

	Pricing shall be firm for the first year and may be changed with thirty (30) day notice every six 	(6) months afterwards. 

	In Attachment I NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Terms and Conditions it states the 	following:

		3. Term of the Master Agreement   
			a. The term of this Master Agreement is for five (5) years
 
		11. Price and Rate Guarantee Period

	All prices and rates must be guaranteed for the initial term of the Master 	Agreement.  Following the initial Master Agreement period, any request for price or rate 	adjustment must be for an equal guarantee period, and must be made at least 45 days prior to 	the effective date.  Requests for price or rate adjustment must include sufficient documentation 	supporting the request.  Any adjustment or amendment to the Master Agreement shall not be 	effective unless approved by the Lead State.  No retroactive adjustments to prices or rates will 	be allowed.

	These conflict with each other, please define the pricing notification period is it 30 or 45 days 	with pricing being held firm for the first year and changes being allowed every 6 months after 	that? Is that first year then considered the Initial Term of the Contract?

Response: Pricing will be held firm for the first year and changes allowed every 6 months after that. The term of the contract is five (5) years.


11.	Section 5.6.8.1 and 5.6.8.13 are duplicate questions. Is it correct to answer the question in 	5.6.8.1 and refer back to that same section in 5.6.8.13”?

	Response: Yes.


12.	Section 5.6.9.1 and 5.6.8.6 are duplicate questions. Is it correct to answer the question in 	5.6.9.1 and refer back to that same section in 5.6.8.6”?

	Response: Yes.


13.	Attachment I NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Terms and Conditions, when you open 	the document states it is Attachment A, which is correct?

	Response: Attachment I


14.	Section 5. Scope of Work - 5.1 Categories -While "proposals will be considered from qualified 	proposers that can provide all products at minimum of one entire category listed," the RFP does 	not appear to require any minimum number of item coverage in a category. The number of 	items from any given proposer within a category can range significantly... from a few hundred 	items to hundreds of thousands. The lack of a minimum requirement for category coverage 	could potentially result in an award to a proposer that does not meet the diverse demand for 	both frequently and infrequently purchased items from contract end users. What is the 	expectation for a proposer's minimum number of Items per category to insure adequate 	coverage of potential user demand?

	Response: There is no minimum requirement for category coverage.


15.	4.5.5.1 on page 13 - Please clarify what you mean by “integration of the CPO’s permission into 	the plan for promoting the agreement?”

	Response: This question is unclear 


16.	5.6.8.10 on page 26, Explain on-line search capabilities for products that are environmentally 	safe.  What do you consider to be environmentally safe?

Response: Products are considered environmentally safe if they fit under the description of the 3rd party environmental certifications and in house green labeling criteria.


17.	5.5.7 on page 20, Will you accept our website as the on-line media catalog?

	Response: The website would be acceptable as long as it had a catalog capability.


18.	Will pricing/margin floors be allowed?

	Response: No


19.	In addition to the ability to offer more favorable discounts for large orders per section 5.2.5, 	will the awarded Contractors be permitted to provide more favorable discounts to any given 	Participating Entity at any time for any reason, or must more favorable discounts only be 	predicated on large orders?

Response: Contractors may offer more favorable discounts to any Participating Entity at any time for any reason.


20.	As like other NASPO ValuePoint contracts, will contractors be required to provide a “contract 	only” view of only those products considered part of this contract on their ordering websites?

	Response: No


21.	Will separate percentage-off-list discounts per sub category be allowed in the Attachment G - 	Percentage off List per Category document? We believe it will be in the best interest of State of 	NV/NASPO/ValuePoint member if this is an acceptable response. Manufacturers have different 	cost and list price models depending on the category. For example; distributors may be able to 	discount Paper, Towel & Tissue 10%; Chemicals 15% and Equipment 2%. State of 	NV/NASPO/ValuePoint members may be missing out on higher discounts if separate discounts 	are not acceptable.

	Response: Yes

22.	In order to allow proposers the time to completely and comprehensively incorporate State of 	NV’s answers to this second set of questions, we respectfully request an extension to the 	deadline for submission of proposals to August 17, 2016.

Response: The opening date of the proposals has been changed to August 16, 2016 @ 2:00pm


23.	Pursuant to Section 5.5.4, Delivery Time for in-stock items:
	a)	Does the State of Nevada expect delivery on weekends and holidays in order to comply 		with section 5.5.4, or is the intent to deliver within 1-2 business days following receipt 		of order?  Nearly all public sector customers do not allow or are not capable of receipt 		on weekends or holidays.

	b)	Is the requirement for 24-48 hour delivery part of the current State of Nevada MRO 		contract and is there evidence that it is being complied with literally?

	Response: Weekend and holiday deliveries are not expected.


24.	Pursuant to Section 5.6.8.12, All drums shall remain the property of the supplier:
	Please define the size of containers that are included as “all drums”. Typically this refers to 30 	and 55 gal containers.

	Response: Both 30 and 55 gallon drums are included in this statement


25.	Pursuant to Section 6.1.11, Confidential Financial Information:
	Proposers are asked to respond in accordance with Section 9.5 but there is no 9.5 to the 	RFP.  Part III is clearly where proposers are to include our financial information but it does not 	define the financial information being requested. Section 6.1.11 does ask for D&B and FEIN 	#s. Can you clarify whether there is additional confidential financial information required?


	Response: See Question # 6


26.	RFP 3250, pg. 19, #5.5.5.3 – Are you able elaborate on what is meant by Workflow 	Management Controls for the e-commerce site, such as elements the State defines as part of 	Workflow? 

Response: Describe the steps that occur during your process of any order request.


27.	5.5.5.9 - Does “online help” include having individuals available via phone to offer assistance 	for website questions? Or is it referring only to support offered through internet 	communication methods, such as live chat box/to provide support over the internet?

	Response: Both methods are preferred.


28.	5.5.5.9 – (requesting further clarification from question #50's response of the first round) Will 	you please give more detail on what is required in regards to "Web Based Product 	sourcing"?  The response given was “Products that proposers are able to source via the 	internet.”  Does this mean proposers should describe their capability to locate and procure an 	item through online sources when the requested product is not regularly stocked by the vendor? 	Or does it refer to something else?

	Response: Proposers should describe their capability to source via a reliable source.


29.	RFP 3250 – pg. 22, #5.6.4 – Is the 24-48 hrs. delivery window the same as 1-2 business days, or 	does the state expect weekends and holidays to be included in the hour calculation?

	Response: See Question # 20


30.	RFP 3250, pg. 28, #5.6.16.1-C – Sourced Products – “the proposer must list in their cost 	proposal (Attachment G) their up charge for all sourced products. Up charges must be detailed 	on invoices as a separate item from the product charge.”  Is the term “Upcharge” intended to 	mean a “finder’s fee” in addition to the item’s list price? Or is the invoice expected to show 	vendor cost and profit margin for non-stock products?
	
Response: Finder’s fee


31.	Oregon PA, pg. 13, #19 Access to Records – Item states “Contractor will retain and keep 	accessible all such fiscal records, books, documents, papers, plans, and writings for a minimum 	of six years, or such longer period..." I want to confirm I understand the 6-year retention 	parameters correctly.  If a vendor is awarded in 2016 and their contract terminates in 2021, is 	that vendor expected to retain ALL of the related 2016-2021 records for an additional six years 	beyond termination (through 2027 in this scenario)? Which would mean 2016 records actually 	need retained for 11 years total, 2017 records 10 years total, etc.…?  Or is it a rolling 6 years 	based on document origin date, where the applicable records created in 2016 only need retained 	through 2022, 2017 retained through 2023, and so forth?

	Response: Access to records is six (6) years after the termination of the agreement.


32.	Section 5.6.16 in solicitation 3250 states that Up Charges must be detailed on invoices as 	separate line item from the "product charge".
	The answer to question #65 provided in 3250 amendment 1, states that sourced products with 	no quoted up charge may be audited to insure that the product was sold at "cost".

	Should have the answer to questions #65 referenced the "product charge"  (in accordance with 	section 5.6.16. of the solicitation) rather than the product "cost" or is the State requiring 	sourced products to be sold at the vendor’s cost (i.e. a Cost plus pricing methodology)?

	Response: Vendor’s cost without the up charge included.


33.	Market Basket and Percentage off list:
	Are the discounts listed in the 2011 webinar document still in effect or have they changed, and 	if what are the present discounts?

	Response: Category discounts are still in effect.


34.	Market Basket and Percentage off list:
	Do these discounts pertain to all catalog items not in the Market Basket?

	Response: Yes.


35.	Market Basket and Percentage off list:
	Since Grainger’s discount ranges from 15%-45%, what discount do they offer for lighting 	products Not in their Market Basket?  I’m guessing it’s not an arbitrary figure.

	Response:  Discount range from 15% to 45% 

36.	I am working on the Market Basket portion & would like to know if it is an all or nothing bid, 	or will it be awarded line by line?

	Response: This will be awarded by category


37.	In the 2010 MRO Consensus Scoresheet, 4.11 refers to CPR/QRF, what do the initials mean?

	Response: Community Rehabilitation Program/ Qualified Rehabilitative Facilities


38.	MBE/WBE/DVP what do these initials mean?

Response: Minority Business Enterprise/Women Business Enterprise/ Disabled Veteran Preference


39.	After the initial pricing is established for the first contract year.  What is the process for price 	updates in the following years?

Response: Contractors may request a price increase with 30 day notice to the Contract Administrator. This request must be accompanied by an explanation for the pricing change and documentation from a reliable pricing index such as the CPI or PPI illustrating the need for the pricing change.  A pricing increase from a manufacturer is not considered sufficient documentation.  The Contract Administrator will review the request and approve or disapprove. 
	

40.	Please provide the Unit of Measure for each item.  This is not included on the majority of items

	Response: Quote each item as one each, or if it is sold in a package one package each.


41.	Safety:  P/N:  21NM47 is marked as discontinued. Do you prefer we quote a “like” items?

	Response: Yes 


42.	Lamps Ballasts:  Lines 41, 82 and 98 are blank, is there missing product information?

	Response: These items have been omitted. There is no missing information.


43.	Jan San: Line 45 is blank.  Is there missing product information?

Response: This item has been omitted. There is no missing information.


44.	Jan San: Line 23 is only a description.  Please provide additional information?

	Response: Omit this item


45.	Jan San: P/N 34TC21 this item and its description is for a GOJO product.  The Manufacturer 	and Manufacturer Part Number provided is for Bostitch P/N:  105577, which is a head valve 	with a Grainger number of 24TC21.  As this is the Jan San category, is the GOJO item in the 	correct item?

	Response: The GOJO product is the correct item.


46.	Jan San: P/N: 4TE17 is duplicated on lines 54 and 95.

	Response: Disregard line 95


47.	Jan San: P/N:  2ZWJ9 is duplicated on lines 86 & 142.

	Response: Disregard line 142


48.	Paint: P/N: 4DNAS is duplicated on lines 52 and 65.

	Response: Disregard line 65


50.	Power Sources: P/N: 21LN85 is duplicated on lines 53 and 104.
	Response: Disregard line 104

ALL ELSE REMAINS THE SAME FOR RFP 3250.


Vendor must sign and return this amendment with proposal submitted.

	Vendor Name:
	

	Authorized Signature:
	

	Title:
	
	Date:
	




	This document must be submitted in the “State Documents” section/tab of vendors’ technical proposal.
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